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Application Form

Organization Information
If you would like to complete this application in Word first and copy your answers over later, use the 
following link: Download Application

The evaluation rubric that will be used to score your request is now available here: Download Rubric

Please pay attention to character limits while working on your draft. These limits include spaces.

Organization Name* 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.

Proposal Name* 
Please choose a short name to identify this project within the grant portal:

WCGC Small Capital Purchases

EIN* 
593714627

Incorporation Year* 
What year did your organization incorporate? This will be the year listed on your determination letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service.

1974

Organizational Mission Statement* 
What is your organization’s mission statement? This should be no longer than one or two sentences.

WestCare empowers everyone with whom we come into contact to engage in a process of healing, growth and 
change benefiting themselves, their families, coworkers and communities.

Unique Entity ID (SAM) 
Please provide your organization's Unique Entity ID number. This is a specific number used by the federal 
government to identify your organization. This is different from a DUNS number, which the federal government no 
longer uses.

If you do not have a Unique Entity ID number, you can create an account on SAM.gov and apply for one here (it is 

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Small-Purchases-Application-ARPA-Nonprofit-Capital-Project-Fund.docx
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Small-Purchases-Rubric-ARPA-Nonprofit-Capital-Project-Fund.pdf
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free and may take 3-4 days for approval): https://sam.gov/content/home

This field is optional as to not stop a qualifying organization from applying. However, a Unique Entity ID number 
will be required if your organization is approved for a grant. Your organization should apply for a number now if it 
does not yet have one.

Character Limit: 12

HNG6XDT1MNL5

Annual Operating Budget Size* 
Please provide the amount of your annual operating budget, (expenditures only) for your entire organization.

$13,379,960.00

Amount Requested* 
The maximum grant amount is $199,999.

$98,363.00

Parent Non-Profit/Subsidiaries* 
If your organization has a parent non-profit that has multiple subsidiaries, will multiple subsidiaries be applying in 
this process?

Example
Better Tomorrow is the parent non-profit of three organizations. Two of those organizations want to apply in this 
process. Both would select "Yes" on this question.

No

Request Specifics
Organization Programmatic Background* 
Please describe the programming your organization offers to the community and the length of time it has been 
doing so. What does your organization do and how long has it been doing it?

WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. (WC-GC) is a 501c3 community-based organization and subsidiary of the 
WestCare Foundation family operating in 16 States and 3 Territories. WC-GC has provided homeless services 
since 2001, including an emergency intervention shelter and inebriate receiving facility, transitional housing, 
supportive housing, wraparound services, rapid rehousing, case management, life skills, and substance 
use/co-occurring disorder treatment. Annually, WC-GC serves more than 1100 unique individuals who are 
homeless or are at risk of homelessness. WC-GC partners with several area providers, the Veterans 
Administration, Pinellas County, the City of St. Petersburg, area landlords, local businesses, and other 
community-based resources to help ensure client success. WC-GC consistently demonstrates its capacity to 

https://sam.gov/content/home


Ronda Lieberman WestCare GulfCoast-Florida Inc.

Printed On: 1 October 2022 ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund - Small Purchases 4

achieve programmatic goals, manage public funds, and exceed reporting requirements of funders. WC-GC is 
CARF accredited and licensed by Florida Department of Children and Families. 

Nationally, WestCare Foundation has been a leading provider of human services for more than four decades. 
These services are offered through three primary locations in St. Petersburg: A Turning Point, the emergency 
intervention shelter and inebriate receiving facility; Mustard Seed Inn, a 73-bed facility providing supportive 
housing to homeless individuals and Veterans who have begun recovery from alcohol, substance misuse and 
mental illness offering case management, career services and rapid rehousing services; and the Davis-Bradley 
Community Involvement Center (DBCIC). The proposed project described will benefit the DBCIC, it contains 
64,000 sq ft. of dedicated space to operate social services on two (2) floors. The Center houses drug treatment 
and mental health services to over 380 individuals in the gender specific Level II and III EMERGE, WEMERGE 
and FOCUS short and long term residential re-entry programs funded by the Florida Department of 
Corrections.

Community Need* 
Please describe the community need that exists for your programming. If you are able to cite quantitative, local 
data, that will strengthen your proposal.

The DBCIC is located in the Thirteenth St. Heights neighborhood, a Tampa-St. Petersburg-Clearwater and FL 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (TSPC-MSA) Qualified Opportunity Zone. According to the Pinellas County 
Economic Development (PCED), the entire tract is in the South St. Pete CRA and a reduced mobility fee zone. 
It is within a Florida designated Brownfield and Urban Jobs Tax Credit area; and a federal NMTC Higher 
Distress Hub Zone. Decades of decisions and circumstances have led to the current situation of persistent 
cross-generational poverty at 56%, high unemployment rate of 16.4%, with 44% Low-Income and Severely 
Cost Burdened residents.  

Close to the beautiful beaches and other internationally well-known tourist attractions, Pinellas County’s 
inner city neighborhoods are plagued by drugs, poverty, violence, disease, and crime, and has many factors 
that impact the potential for drug abuse problems. PCED reports 23.5% of 45-54-year-olds had used cocaine, 
crack, heroin, methamphetamine, or synthetic versions in this opportunity zone. WC-GC provides a wide 
spectrum of human services in both residential and outpatient environment that targets adults and youth in 
all areas of Pinellas County. The DBCIC offers treatment for men and women in two phases: the Intensive 
Treatment Component (ITC) and the Employment/Re-entry Component (ERC). Among WC-GC current adult 
clientele, 100% have a substance abuse (use and dependence) issue and 70% have a co-occurring substance 
abuse and mental health disorder.  Approximately 30% are Veterans (from all wars including Afghanistan and 
Iraq with PTSD), approximately 45% are females, 65% are males, 50% were involved in the criminal justice 
system at some time in their history, 19% are ages 18-30, 50% are ages 31-50, 30% are ages 51-61, and 1% is 
over the age of 62.  Approximately 37% of WC-GC’s clientele is African American and 52% is Caucasian and 
another 10% are Hispanic.
 

Negative Economic Impact on Organization* 
The following question is the keystone of a strong application in this process. If your organization cannot 
demonstrate a negative economic impact from the pandemic, your application will not qualify for committee 
review. If you are uncertain about what constitutes negative economic impact or how to demonstrate it, please 
contact PCF staff for technical assistance.

Describe your organization’s negative economic impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. Examples could 
include:
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• A reduction in revenue from 2019 to 2020

• Inflationary pressures

• Increases in demand for services that have not been compensated for through new revenue

• The use of reserves for unbudgeted expenses since the onset of the pandemic, and such use of reserves 
has prevented the purchase of capital assets

• A need for capital assets to offset community need for which your organization does not have the 
resources to purchase due to the negative economic harm from the pandemic

• A need for additional capital assets to adapt operations to accommodate health and safety guidelines by 
the CDC

• Growth in restricted pandemic-related revenue that does not permit capital asset acquisition

You have the option to upload supporting documentation regarding negative economic impact. However, please 
limit your upload to no more than five pages.

Note: If you are applying for both a Small Purchase and Large Project, you may reuse the answer for this question 
PROVIDED THAT the negative economic impact is relevant to both requests. The Large Project Letter of Intent does 
not permit uploads to support the answer to this question.

WCGC Budget to Actuals FY21-FY22.pdf
WC-GC experienced significant negative economic impact from the pandemic. In FY21 (July 2020 - June 
2021), WC-GC experienced a $494K budget deficit with residential treatment (Davis-Bradley), emergency 
shelter (A Turning Point), transitional and rapid rehousing (Mustard Seed Inn), youth drug prevention, and 
outpatient drug treatment programs all experiencing a deficit. Although WC-GC was able to restructure 
programs and renegotiate contracts in FY22 (July 2021 – June 2022), WC-GC ended the two-year period with 
a $350K deficit. WC-GC used PPP funds to assist with payroll, but this did not address all program costs or 
service reductions. New contracts with FL Dept. of Corrections, Central Florida Behavioral Health Network, 
and SAMHSA for residential treatment, prevention, recovery support, and medication assisted treatment 
(MAT) were the primary sources of funding that offset program costs.

FL Sixth Judicial Circuit Court (Pinellas and Pasco) suspended Drug Court services for several months which 
subsequently reduced referrals to residential and outpatient treatment. This, in turn, affected the number of 
new individuals receiving medication assisted treatment (MAT) while pandemic stress slowed the rate of 
client graduation – both reducing revenue and increasing costs. The combined budget deficit for residential 
treatment, outpatient, and MAT services was $1,026,831 during FY21. WC-GC’s Residential and Outpatient 
programs are critical sources of unrestricted revenue and this deficit directly impacted WC-GC’s ability to 
purchase equipment or start capital projects. WC-GC’s homeless service programs, Mustard Seed Inn and A 
Turning Point, saw greater than expected losses. Eviction moratoriums and critical shortages of low-income 
housing resulted in longer stays in transitional housing and slower rehousing; coupled with widespread 
reductions in entry-level service worker positions, more residents were unable to pay rent/program fees or 
secure move-in deposits – all of which were subsidized by WC-GC. A Turning Point, the only inebriate-
receiving shelter in the County reduced capacity from 65 beds to 30 beds due to social distancing. Local Street 
Outreach Teams reduced services (and referrals) and many individuals avoided shelters out of fear of 
contracting the virus. Although social distancing restrictions have eased and capacity has increased to 
approximately 45 beds, staffing costs have increased more than 25%, inflation has put significant pressure on 
soft costs, and local and regional funding shifts away from shelter care to other homeless services have 
prevented A Turning Point from returning to pre-pandemic service levels.
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Proposal Description* 

The American Rescue Plan Act requires a request that is reasonable and proportional to the level of economic 

impact your organization experienced. This means the request you describe below should not be greater than the 

economic harm your organization has suffered.

Please describe your purchase proposal and address the following:

• What will you be purchasing with these funds?

• What is the estimated lifespan of the purchase/improvement?

• How does it address the negative economic harm you described in the previous question?
Trailer for Camp 
5-10 years
Six (6) annual family visits to Camp Mariposa and a field trip once a month for underserved youth from 
Pinellas Co. Positive social/family support is related to long-term abstinence and recovery. The trailer used to 
transport all camp supplies but is being held together by rust.

Sixteen (16) Armchairs for Employment Group Room 
5 years
Safe and comfortable chairs help patients decrease recovery time while assisting the organization get higher 
ROI and reinforcing a commitment to high standards.

Folding Tables and Chairs for DB Dining Rooms 
5 years 
Six (6) 8ft and (6) 6ft tables and sixty (60) folding chairs. The DBCIC dining program plays an important role 
in patient recovery, providing excellent nutrition to those recovering indicates to potential patients and 
families that this is a high-quality rehab center.

Security cameras/System for programs  
5 years
Seventy-two (72) security cameras, complete with installation are a cost-effective way to deter, document, 
and reduce crime, keep clients safe, decrease safety risks in the outside areas and document all business 
activity in the facility. 

Two (2) Floor Buffing/Stripping machines 
5-10 years
Keeping floors clean and dried helps prevent the spread of contaminants that can be life threatening. Keeping 
communal spaces clean helps improve employee performance and productivity by reducing absences related 
to allergies and illness.

Food Trays for Client Meals 
5 years
Two-hundred (200) 10x14 compartment food trays assist staff with food perp, on-time service and keeping 
the facility patients happy and healthy.

Six (5) Mop Buckets 
5 year
35qt Down Press Mop Buckets enhance occupant well-being and help save water to ensure employees and 
clients safety and sustainability – a frontline necessity for floor care maintenance.

Outdoor Grills 
5-10 years



Ronda Lieberman WestCare GulfCoast-Florida Inc.

Printed On: 1 October 2022 ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund - Small Purchases 7

Five (5) Large 30" Outdoor Charcoal Grills are used during Power Outages, for cooking classes, to build 
comradery for clients, also used for celebrations and events. 

Bed Bug Mattress Encasement  
5-10 year
Two-hundred (200) encasements are fully zippered protectors for mattresses and box springs that engulf 
them on all six sides for: stains and spoilage; keeping out allergens; dust mites; and bed bugs.

XL Twin Mattress replacements  
5-10 years
One-hundred (100) wholesale waterproof mattresses to provide people with mattresses that are clean and 
comfortable for healing and recovery.

Guiding Principles - Client Impact* 
The American Rescue Plan Act, which provides the funding for this grant program, aims to ensure an equitable 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. The term “equity” is defined as:

The consistent and systematic fair, just, and impartial treatment of all individuals, including individuals who 
belong to underserved communities that have been denied such treatment, such as Black, Latino, and 
Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and other persons of color; 
members of religious minorities; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ+) persons; persons with 
disabilities; persons who live in rural areas; and persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty or 
inequality.

One of the guiding principles of this fund is that it will apply a lens of equity to ensure the needs of specified 
priority populations are met.

Will this purchase benefit the community members defined above that have experienced disproportionate 
negative impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic? If so, how?

WC-GC is actively assisting Americans struggling with increases in depression, anxiety, trauma, and grief, 
including healthcare and behavioral health professionals. Growth in the areas of substance misuse (including 
opioids), overdose, and substance misuse-related deaths are imminent. WC-GC understands that there has 
never been more of a need for safe and accessible crisis intervention services, mental and substance use 
disorder treatment, and other related recovery supports. All emergency/pandemic plans undertaken by WC-
GC operate in adherence to requirements of state licensing, CARF International, The Joint Commission and 
any regulatory requirements established by Federal and State regulations or laws.

DBCIC will innovate using EBPs to address gaps in care for vulnerable populations and proactively shift the 
outcome of COVID-19 in minority communities. It is clear that current surges of new infections are occurring 
across the US and minority communities continue to be hardest hit. Aggressive planning is needed to equip 
communities with an effective continuum of care that addresses gaps and vulnerabilities for those at risk, as 
well as those already impacted by a positive diagnosis of COVID-19. For individuals and families, who are 
recovering from the physical and emotional toll of a positive COVID-19 diagnosis, the long term effects appear 
to be unrelenting and the continuum of services must also address these very specific integrated care needs. 

A System of Care approach with blended, compatible, and proven EBPs to address disparity in care is 
proposed for lower risk, vulnerable populations. Additionally, the business modeling for these services can 
stabilize the financial health of community providers while a strong evaluation component informs and 
strengthens practice innovation. The pandemic has unveiled deep health inequalities with significant gaps in 
care. The next steps taken together can change how communities live with and live after COVID-19.
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Number Served* 
How many people will directly benefit from this capital purchase annually?

245

Unduplicated vs. Duplicated* 
Is the number indicated above duplicated or unduplicated?
Duplicated: A client is counted each time they access services
Unduplicated: A client is counted once, regardless of the number of times they access services

Example: ABC Food Bank operates two mobile food pantries, one in Clearwater and one in St. Petersburg. Taylor, a 
Pinellas County resident, goes to both food pantries. If ABC Food Bank counts Taylor's visit TWICE, it is duplicated. 
If ABC Food Bank counts Taylor's visit ONCE, it is unduplicated.

Unduplicated

Other (Explanation Required) 
If you selected "Other" in the previous question, please explain how your organization determined the number of 
clients that will benefit from the proposed capital purchase.

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) prioritizes organizations that either have headquarters or carry out the 
majority of their operations inside Qualified Census Tracts (QCTs). QCTs are a standard method of identifying 
communities with a large proportion of low-income residents. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development determines what areas qualify as QCT. 

To assess if your organization serves or is headquartered in a QCT, use the following link: 
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sadda/sadda_qct.html

In the top right-hand corner, choose the state of Florida and Pinellas County. Then on the left-hand side of the 
screen, click the box next to “Color QCT Qualified Tracts.” The QCT zones are denoted in purple. You can also map 
your address by adding it into the address box at the top to see if your location is inside the zones.

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sadda/sadda_qct.html
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Below, please provide the location of your operations and the location of your headquarters, if different.

Headquarters Location* 
Please provide your organization's headquarters address as it appears on your Sunbiz account. To check your 
Sunbiz registration, you may search here: https://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/

8800 49th Street N #402, Pinellas Park, FL 33782

QCT Determination - Headquarters* 
Is this organization headquartered in a QCT?

https://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/
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No

Purchase Location* 
Where will the majority of the activities related to the purchase(s) take place?

Examples

• If you are proposing the purchase of a van that will deliver to multiple areas within Pinellas County, 
specifically mention what areas those are.

• If your purchase enables remote access to your services, such as telehealth, provide geographical data 
around where the majority of your clients reside (presuming they will access your services from their 
residence).

The majority of activities will take place in the Davis Bradly Community Involvement Center located at 1735 
Dr Martin Luther King Jr St. S, Saint Petersburg FL 33705.

QCT Determination - Purchase* 
Does this organization's proposed purchase benefit residents of QCTs?

Yes

Community Connection
This section aims to capture general demographic data about your organization and to see how you engage 
with and represent the community you serve. PCF has generalized the demographic data questions more than 
it has in other processes because of the public nature of this process. PCF understands that identity disclosure 
can be a sensitive matter, and wants to respect your organization's board and staff. If your organization feels 
comfortable sharing more detailed demographic information, it may do so in the "Community Representation 
and Connection" section.

Community Representation and Connection* 
Describe how your organization is representative of, or has authentic connections to, the community your 
proposal seeks to serve. You can list other community-based organizations that work on programming with you 
and/or list examples of your work within this community.

WC-GC has served the Pinellas community for 2 decades and has developed authentic partnerships that are 
representative of the organization. Davis Bradley CIC works closely with both WC-GC's Mustard Seed Inn and 
A Turning Point to address the needs of residents experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness, 
needing treatment or community services. As such, WC-GC staff serve on a number of committees with the 
local CoC and Homeless Leadership Alliance (HLA). 

Pinellas County Department of Health - Onsite monthly clinic, vaccinations, Hepatitis screenings, STD 
screening and referral

St. Petersburg Free Clinic - Medical and dental services for those w/o insurance 
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Evara Health: Johnnie Ruth Clarke Dental Clinic (Formerly Community Health Centers of Pinellas, Inc.) 
provides dental and medical care

Suncoast Centers – Mental Health services and low-cost prescriptions

Directions for Living – Mental Health services and low-cost prescriptions

Urban Specialty Pharmacy - Prescription services

Pinellas County Schools - GED Services

PTEC (Pinellas Technical College) - Vocational Support, Job Skills Training

PERC (People Empowering and Restoring Communities; Formerly Pinellas Ex-offenders Re-entry Coalition) 
STARS Program (Success Training and Retention Services)

Leadership Demographics - Board Membership* 
Do your board members consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? Check all 
that apply. 

• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+)

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

BIPOC
LGBTQ+
None of the above

Leadership Demographics - Executive Level Leadership Team* 
Does your executive leadership team consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? 
Check all that apply.

• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+)

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

If your organization is volunteer-run and does not have an executive leadership team, please select "Not 
applicable."

BIPOC
LGBTQ+
None of the above
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Leadership Demographics - CEO/Executive Director* 
Does your CEO/Executive Director consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? 
Check all that apply. 

• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ defined as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

If your organization is volunteer-run and does not have an executive leader, please select "Not applicable."

None of the above

Proposal Costs
Purchase Estimates/Bids* 

You must combine all bids/estimates into one file.
Attach current verifiable bids, estimates, or price lists [from your potential vendor(s)]. Please ensure there is a date 
listed or when you obtained these estimates/bids, as they must be from within the past sixty (60) days.

• If your purchase is BELOW $75,000, you must upload TWO verifiable bids or estimates for the proposed 
purchases.

• If your purchase is EQUAL TO or MORE THAN $75,000, you must upload THREE verifiable bids or estimates 
for your proposed purchases.

This can be as simple as screenshots from Amazon or Best Buy (though PCF does not endorse or recommend any 
specific vendor) or may be from specialized vendors that sell your proposed purchase. If you have concerns 
regarding bids or estimates, please reach out to PCF staff.

Small Purchase Estimates WCGC DBCIC.pdf

Sole Source* 
In some cases, a proposed small purchase is only available from a single vendor, and as such, only one 
bid/estimate can be uploaded. If this is the case for your organization, please explain in the field below.
Otherwise, write "N/A" below.

Security Cameras/System for Programs:
WC-GC works solely with Alibi Security (serving the community 30 years) for all professional security and IT 
solutions. Alibi Staff and leadership and co-owner Troy West supports the WC-GC mission. The ALIBI Partner 
Program was designed-based on the feedback to deliver a measurable, positive impact on organizations 
bottom line.
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Related Parties* 
Are any of the contractors/vendors that have provided bids/estimates a related party to your organization?

Examples of Related Parties

• A board member that owns the contracting company that provided a bid

• The relative of a director, officer, or executive team member owns a company that provided an estimate

• The CEO of the applying organization has a financial interest in the construction company providing a bid

If yes, identify the vendor and describe the relationship.
If no, write "No related parties below."

No

Budget Summary* 

Please use THIS TEMPLATE to indicate costs and any cash match your organization may have for the 
proposed purchases. Note: this spreadsheet will automatically round numbers to make it easier to read for 
committee members.
Please note that indirect costs are not permitted for small purchases.

If you have additional notes to add to your budget summary, you may do so in the text box below.

Budget-WCGC Small-Capital-Purchases DBCIC.xlsx
N/A

Other Funding Sources* 
Please describe any other funding not already mentioned that your organization has applied for or obtained for 
this purchase.

This includes but is not limited to Community Block Development Grants (CBDG), local government grants 
(including Tourist Development Council funding), foundation grants, and private donors (you do not need to 
disclose donor identities but simply indicate the amount raised for this purchase). This includes any matching 
grants or in-kind contributions you may have obtained.

Please be sure these other funding sources are represented in the "Applicant Match" column in the budget 
summary uploaded above.
N/A

Changes in Operating Costs* 
Please answer this question based on the descriptions below:

• If this project increases ongoing operational costs (programmatic, operating maintenance or other costs), 
how will you compensate for the difference?

• If this purchase decreases ongoing operating costs, how will it do so?

• If this purchase does not affect operating costs, please note so below.

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Budget-Template-Small-Capital-Purchases.xlsx
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Please see attached Budget-to-Actual spreadsheet. Historically, the revenue from Davis Bradley Residential 
Services and Outpatient contracts have supplemented the operations of other WC-GC programs that are 
budgeted to operate at a loss. 

In FY22 WC-GC renegotiated a major contract with FL Department of Corrections that resulted in a significant 
revenue increase in FY22 but that will not yield the same earnings once staff salaries are adjusted to meet the 
new Florida minimum wage requirements and inflation is accounted for.  

Organization Documentation

Please reach out to PCF staff if you have trouble uploading the files below. We are 
able to assist with file conversion and file compression.

Organization Budget* 
Please upload your most recent, board-approved organizational budget for this fiscal year. PDF and Excel 
documents are accepted.

FY23 Agency Budget.pdf

Board of Directors List* 
Please upload your Board of Directors list.

Excel, Word, and PDF file formats are accepted.

Board of Directors List WCGC 22.pdf

IRS Form 990* 
Please upload a PDF copy of your most recently submitted IRS Form 990.

If Form 990 from your most recent fiscal year is delayed or you have received an extension, please explain in the 
text space below. You may also explain if you don't have a Form 990 due to organization type. You should still 
upload the most recent publicly available 990.

If you file a Form 990-EZ and do not have anything to attach, please note so below.

Only PDF files are permitted.

WCGC 990 2020.pdf
WCGC 990 attached
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Most Recent Financial Statements* 
Upload a PDF version of your most recent financial statements. If you have audited financial statements, please 
upload the most recently conducted audit. If you do not have a recent audit, please explain why.

2021 WestCare GulfCoast Audit.pdf
2021 WestCare GulfCoast Audit attached

Insurance Requirements
Evidence of Insurance Coverage* 
Grantees of the ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund will be required to maintain appropriate insurance related to 
your operations and this purchase. PCF will determine whether this coverage is appropriate.

Please upload evidence of insurance.

If your organization does not have evidence of insurance coverage, please provide an explanation as to why.

GCFL For Info Only 7.1.22.pdf
Evidence of Insurance Coverage attached

Insurance Requirement* 
If you are awarded a contract from the ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund, you will be required to list Pinellas 
Community Foundation as an additional insured through your general liability insurance or other appropriate 
coverages for the duration of the contract. If you would like to check with your insurance carrier on how to do this, 
here is the information about PCF you will need:

Pinellas Community Foundation
17755 US Highway 19 N
Suite 150
Clearwater, FL 33764
727-531-0058

Please check the box below to indicate that you understand and will be able to comply with this requirement if you 
are awarded a contract.

PCF will not ask for a certificate naming us as additional insured until the contracting stage.

Yes, I understand and will comply with this requirement if awarded a contract.
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Post-Grant Requirements
Reporting Requirements Acknowledgment* 
Grantees will be required to submit a pre-award agreement within two weeks of receiving an award notice. In 
addition, grantees will be required to submit a report within 30 days after the purchase is completed.

Financial information justifying all expenditures will also need to be provided. This includes but is not limited to:

• Invoices

• Canceled checks

• Credit card statements, along with a record of paying the credit card.

If you have any questions, please contact Rose Cervantes, ARPA Program Officer at rcervantes@pinellascf.org.

Yes, I agree to submit this grant agreement and impact report within the specified timeframes.

Additional Information
Budget Summary 

NO LONGER USED, REPLACED IN APP WITH UPLOAD FIELD INCLUDED

Please use THIS TEMPLATE to indicate costs and any cash match your organization may have for the 
proposed purchases.
Please note that indirect costs are not permitted for small purchases.

If you have additional notes to add to your budget summary, you may do so in the text box below.

Additional Upload 
If you have something to share, you can upload it here in PDF format.

Anything else to share? 
Is there anything else that you would like Pinellas Community Foundation to know or other information your 
organization would like to share that isn't addressed elsewhere in this application?

Brief Project Descriptor 
Please briefly describe this organization's request.

mailto:rcervantes@pinellascf.org
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/ARPA-Budget-Template-Small-Purchases.xlsx
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File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   WCGC Budget to Actuals FY21-FY22.pdf
•   Small Purchase Estimates WCGC DBCIC.pdf
•   Budget-WCGC Small-Capital-Purchases DBCIC.xlsx
•   FY23 Agency Budget.pdf
•   Board of Directors List WCGC 22.pdf
•   WCGC 990 2020.pdf
•   2021 WestCare GulfCoast Audit.pdf
•   GCFL For Info Only 7.1.22.pdf
 



WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.

FY21 (7/20-6/21)

Program / Description Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA
Administration 3,684.00$                 473,769.00$         (470,085.00)$       1,004,516.00$      777,021.00$         227,495.00$          1,000,832.00$   303,252.00$      697,580.00$     
Prevention 83,822.00$              59,554.00$           24,268.00$           54,227.00$           35,855.00$           18,372.00$             (29,595.00)$        (23,699.00)$       (5,896.00)$        
Pinellas Outpatient 1,323,597.00$         1,161,751.00$      161,846.00$        1,039,517.00$      1,062,431.00$      (22,914.00)$           (284,080.00)$     (99,320.00)$       (184,760.00)$   
Mustard Seed Inn 704,857.00$            845,620.00$         (140,763.00)$       622,706.00$         838,136.00$         (215,430.00)$         (82,151.00)$        (7,484.00)$         (74,667.00)$      
A Turning Point 901,631.00$            1,028,171.00$      (126,540.00)$       957,962.00$         1,168,800.00$      (210,838.00)$         56,331.00$         140,629.00$      (84,298.00)$      
Residential Programs (Davis Bradley) 4,334,876.00$         4,120,409.00$      214,467.00$        3,746,629.00$      3,837,176.00$      (90,547.00)$           (588,247.00)$     (283,233.00)$     (305,014.00)$   
Pasco Outpatient 1,553,767.00$         1,296,874.00$      256,893.00$        1,242,898.00$      1,271,337.00$      (28,439.00)$           (310,869.00)$     (25,537.00)$       (285,332.00)$   
Medication Assisted Treatment 1,144,400.00$         1,049,709.00$      94,691.00$           1,285,435.00$      1,442,469.00$      (157,034.00)$         141,035.00$       392,760.00$      (251,725.00)$   
TOTAL 10,050,634.00$      10,035,857.00$   14,777.00$          9,953,890.00$     10,433,225.00$   (479,335.00)$         (96,744.00)$       397,368.00$      (494,112.00)$   

FY22 (7/21-6/22)

Program / Description Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA
Administration 53,684.00$              621,389.00$         (567,705.00)$       804,779.00$         1,113,964.00$      (309,185.00)$         751,095.00$       492,575.00$      258,520.00$     
Prevention 75,959.00$              56,552.00$           19,407.00$           108,181.00$         76,867.00$           31,314.00$             32,222.00$         20,315.00$        11,907.00$       
Pinellas Outpatient 1,238,165.00$         1,173,336.00$      64,829.00$           1,047,249.00$      1,068,709.00$      (21,460.00)$           (190,916.00)$     (104,627.00)$     (86,289.00)$      
Mustard Seed Inn 629,158.00$            784,780.00$         (155,622.00)$       630,226.00$         883,673.00$         (253,447.00)$         1,068.00$           98,893.00$        (97,825.00)$      
A Turning Point 729,342.00$            1,000,189.00$      (270,847.00)$       824,969.00$         971,254.00$         (146,285.00)$         95,627.00$         (28,935.00)$       124,562.00$     
Residential Programs (Davis Bradley) 5,157,154.00$         4,366,768.00$      790,386.00$        5,712,696.00$      4,466,772.00$      1,245,924.00$       555,542.00$       100,004.00$      455,538.00$     
Pasco Outpatient 1,695,371.00$         1,623,532.00$      71,839.00$           1,450,035.00$      1,505,157.00$      (55,122.00)$           (245,336.00)$     (118,375.00)$     (126,961.00)$   
Medication Assisted Treatment 1,793,875.00$         1,311,281.00$      482,594.00$        1,822,283.00$      1,735,976.00$      86,307.00$             28,408.00$         424,695.00$      (396,287.00)$   
TOTAL 11,372,708.00$      10,937,827.00$   434,881.00$        12,400,418.00$   11,822,372.00$   578,046.00$          1,027,710.00$   884,545.00$      143,165.00$     

Combined FY21 & FY22 (7/20-6/22): Pandemic Timeframe

Program / Description Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA Revenue Expense EBITDA
Administration 57,368.00$              1,095,158.00$      (1,037,790.00)$    1,809,295.00$      1,890,985.00$      (81,690.00)$           1,751,927.00$   795,827.00$      956,100.00$     
Prevention 159,781.00$            116,106.00$         43,675.00$           162,408.00$         112,722.00$         49,686.00$             2,627.00$           (3,384.00)$         6,011.00$         
Pinellas Outpatient 2,561,762.00$         2,335,087.00$      226,675.00$        2,086,766.00$      2,131,140.00$      (44,374.00)$           (474,996.00)$     (203,947.00)$     (271,049.00)$   
Mustard Seed Inn 1,334,015.00$         1,630,400.00$      (296,385.00)$       1,252,932.00$      1,721,809.00$      (468,877.00)$         (81,083.00)$        91,409.00$        (172,492.00)$   
A Turning Point 1,630,973.00$         2,028,360.00$      (397,387.00)$       1,782,931.00$      2,140,054.00$      (357,123.00)$         151,958.00$       111,694.00$      40,264.00$       
Residential Programs (Davis Bradley) 9,492,030.00$         8,487,177.00$      1,004,853.00$     9,459,325.00$      8,303,948.00$      1,155,377.00$       (32,705.00)$        (183,229.00)$     150,524.00$     
Pasco Outpatient 3,249,138.00$         2,920,406.00$      328,732.00$        2,692,933.00$      2,776,494.00$      (83,561.00)$           (556,205.00)$     (143,912.00)$     (412,293.00)$   
Medication Assisted Treatment 2,938,275.00$         2,360,990.00$      577,285.00$        3,107,718.00$      3,178,445.00$      (70,727.00)$           169,443.00$       817,455.00$      (648,012.00)$   
TOTAL 21,423,342.00$      20,973,684.00$   449,658.00$        22,354,308.00$   22,255,597.00$   98,711.00$             930,966.00$       1,281,913.00$   (350,947.00)$   

EBITDA = Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization

FY21 Approved Budget

FY22 Approved Budget

FY21-FY22 Approved Budget

FY21 Actual Budget Variance

FY22 Actual Budget Variance

FY21-FY22 Actual Budget Variance



"We now offer RENT ro OWNi AsR yOtff sales rep fur more aetalls •* 
CALL TODAY FOR A QUOTE! 

SEE STOCK CONTACT US 

7xl4 TA Trailer - White, Barn Doors, Side Door, Extra 



Price for factory pick-up in GA

Height 

$6,354 

ADD TO CART 

We now offer RENT TO OWN aprlons! AsR yotir sales rep fur more aetalls 





We now offer a Veteran & Active Military Discount of $25 off your purchase of a trailer. Be 
sure to let your salesperson know at the time of checkout. Thank you for your service! 

RELATED PRODUCTS 

Local Pricing



PICTURES 

74 FT LONG 74 FT LONG 

$6,582 $6,242 

pv I Jl Flatsome Theme 





















































15505 Long Vista Drive
Suite 250
Austin TX 78728

Quote

Customer # 65569

Date of Quote 9/6/2022

Quote # EST172037

Sold To
Kante Anderson
Westcare Foundation Las Vegas
PO Box 94738
Las Vegas NV 89193
United States

Ship To
Westcare Foundation Las Vegas
1711 Whitney Mesa Dr.
Henderson NV 89044
United States

Shipping Method: UPS® Ground

Terms:

Job Name: David Bradley

Sales Rep: Louie Tamez Expires: 9/30/2022

www.alibisecurity.com

PO Number:

888.858.1442

Quantity

1

6

48

24

24

2

1

1

Item

ALI-NR1280X-16

HDD10SHP-AI

ALI-FT41-UA

ALI-PB60-UA

ALI-JB05-A-IN

DGS-1210-28MP

DGS-1210-52MP

UPS® Ground

Description
High Priority Dealer/Installer Customer

Alibi NR Type 128CH NVR 512Mbps 16 SATA RAID
3U Built-in Rack Mounting

Seagate SkyHawk AI 10TB SATA 6Gb/s 256MB
Cache 3.5“

4MP IP Turret 98‘ Starlight IR 2.8mm 120dB WDR
Built-in Mic Ultra H.265 SD-Card

6MP IP Bullet 131ft IR Starlight 2.8mm WDR Built-in
Mic Ultra H.265 SD-Card

Junction Box

DGS-1210 Series Smart Managed 28-Port Gigabit
PoE Switch including 4 Gigabit COMBO Ports,
370W PoE Budget

52 Port Gigabit Web Smart PoE Switch with 4GB
SFP Ports

UPS Ground

NDAA

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unit Price

3,299.99

363.99

109.99

189.99

13.79

514.59

789.59

0.00

Ext. Price

3,299.99

2,183.94

5,279.52

4,559.76

330.96

1,029.18

789.59

0.00

Total $17,472.94

EST172037

FOR CREDIT CARD ORDERS, YOUR CREDIT CARD WILL BE CHARGED BY “AlibiSecurity”.

For Warranty & Return information, please go to: www.alibisecurity.com/warranty

If you have any questions about this order, contact your sales representative.



























































































































































ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund – Small Purchases Budget
Organization Name:  WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc
Proposal Name: 

A B C D E F G H
Line
Item Item (Description)

Price Per
Item

Quantity of
Item

Purchase
Total

ARPA Grant Funds
Requested Applicant  Match Funding Total

1 7x14 Cargo Trailer $ 6,609.00 1 $ 6,609 $ 6,609 $ - $ 6,609
2 Group room chairs with arms $ 91.96 16 $ 1,471 $ 1,471 $ - $ 1,471
3 8 ft Folding Tables for Dining Room $ 103.14 6 $ 619 $ 619 $ - $ 619
4 6 ft Folding Tables for Dining Room$ 114.32 6 $ 686 $ 686 $ - $ 686
5 72 Camera Security System $ 17,472.94 1 $ 17,473 $ 17,473 $ - $ 17,473
6 Floor Buffing/Stripping machine$ 1,670.00 2 $ 3,340 $ 3,340 $ - $ 3,340
7 10x14 (6) compartment food tray$ 4.99 200 $ 998 $ 998 $ - $ 998
8 35qt Down Press Mop Bucket $ 131.82 5 $ 659 $ 659 $ - $ 659
9 Folding Chairs for Dining Room $ 48.67 60 $ 2,920 $ 2,920 $ - $ 2,920

10 Large 30" Charcoal Grill $ 399.00 5 $ 1,995 $ 1,995 $ - $ 1,995
11 Bed Bug Mattress Encasement $ 42.97 200 $ 8,594 $ 8,594 $ - $ 8,594
12 XL Twin Mattress - replacements$ 529.99 100 $ 52,999 $ 52,999 $ - $ 52,999

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

TOTAL 602 $ 98,363 $ 98,363 $ - $ 98,363

THE "PURCHASE TOTAL" AND "FUNDING TOTAL" COLUMN SHOULD BE EQUAL
Columns E, H, and the "TOTAL" row are locked and cannot be edited

Key
Item (Description) Brief name/description of the purchase requested
Price per item The individual price of one unit of the proposed purchase
Quantity of Item The number of units of the proposed purchase you are requested
Purchase Total Total purchase cost of the proposed line item (quantity multipled by price)

ARPA Grant Funds Requested The amount of ARPA funding requested for this line item
Applicant Match The amount (if any) that you, the applicant, are contributing towards the purchase of the line item
Funding Total Total funding for proposed line item (ARPA grant request plus applicant match)



WestCare Gulfcoast Florida    
FY23 Budget

Funding Source FY23 Budget
 Federal Funding 2,943,227
 State Funding 6,908,559
 SASCA Aftercare -                           
 County Funding 1,601,386
 City Funding 344,862
 Other Grant 438,008
 Client Fees 1,161,900
 Fund Development 38,084
 In-Kind Donations 24,000
 Other Revenue 6,000
Revenue Total 13,466,026$      

Expense Category FY23 Budget
 Salary 5,976,890
 Benefits 1,494,223
 In-kind Donations 24,000
 Food Service 819,918
 Occupancy 866,776
 Prgm Maint/Supplies 1,433,546
 Purchased After Care -                           
 Consulting 388,021
 Travel 92,201
 Furniture & Equipment 91,622
 Repair & Maintenance 157,677
 Vehicles 55,598
 Office/Advertising/Insurance 517,166
 Interest & Taxes -                           
 Management/Administration 1,405,864
 Amortization/Depreciation 142,524
Expense Total 13,466,026$      

 Net Fund Balance -$                         



 
 

GulfCoast Florida  
Community Action Council 2022 

 
 

         
Jerry Bynes 
801 Chestnut Street #1113 
Clearwater, FL 33756 
(727) 326-8320 cell 
vabynes55@aol.com  
jerry.bynes@va.gov   
 
African American / Male/ 
Formerly Homeless / Retired  
  
 
Mary Miller      
5411 7th Avenue North 
St Petersburg, FL 33710 
(727) 321-4630 home 
(727) 254-6457 cell 
 
maryemiller@hotmail.com  
 
White / Female / Retired 
 
  
Markus Hughes, Chair 
3251 70th Way North 
St Petersburg, FL 33710 
(727) 459-2592 cell 
(727) 422-3602 work cell 
markus.hughes@stpete.org 
 
White / Male / Police Officer 
WC BOD 
 
 
Deborah Flanagan, OD, P.A. 
5909 Pelican Bay Plaza 
Gulfport, FL 33707 
(727) 656-1501 cell 
(727) 343-3997 home 
(727) 321-6600 work 
flanadream@gmail.com 
 
African American / Female / 
Medical Director, Eye Assoc. 

 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida 

PO Box 12019, St. Petersburg, FL 33733 -2019 
westcare.com | Phone: 727-490-6767 | Fax: 727-683-9641 
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WestCare GulfCoast Florida, Inc. 
2022 Board of Directors and Officers  

 
 
 
At-Large Directors 
 

Rick Ramsay ~ Chair 
Monroe County Sheriff’s Office 
5525 College Road 
Key West, FL  33040 
(305) 292-7001 Work (Direct) 
rramsay@keysso.net 
2/3 
Law Enforcement 
Community Service 
White 
Male 
Key West, FL 

Markus Hughes ~ Vice Chair 
3251 70th Way North 
St. Petersburg, FL 33710 
(727) 459-2592 Cell 
(727) 422-3602 Work Cell 
markus.hughes@stpete.org 
3/3 
Law Enforcement 
Community Service 
White 
Male 
St. Petersburg, FL 

 

 
 
Executive Committee Directors 
  

James (Jim) L. Wadhams   
Black & Wadhams Attorneys 
10777 West Twain Ave., Ste 300 
Las Vegas, NV 89135 
(702) 869-8801 Work 
jlwadhams@blackwadhams.law 
3/3 
Attorney 
Business Law 
White 
Male 
Las Vegas, NV 
 
 
 

Derrick T. Boazman   
1860 Bond Drive 
Atlanta, GA 30315 
(404) 246-8001 Cell 
DB1380@gmail.com 
3/3 
On-Air Radio Personality 
Business/Community Service 
African American 
Male 
Atlanta, GA 
 

Thomas (Tom) J. Walsh, II    
180 28th Ave. North 
St. Petersburg, FL 33704 
(727) 552-1947 Work 
tom.walsh@westcare.com 
3/3 
Attorney 
Government/Business Law 
White 
Male 
St. Petersburg, FL 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:rramsay@keysso.net
mailto:markus.hughes@stpete.org
mailto:jlwadhams@blackwadhams.law
mailto:DB1380@gmail.com
mailto:tom.walsh@westcare.com
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Ramón (Ray) A. Abadin  
2333 Ponce De Leon Blvd. 
BAC Colonnade, Suite 314 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
(305) 321-4496 Cell 
rabadin@abadinlaw.com  
3/3 
Attorney 
Business Law 
Hispanic 
Male 
Coral Gables, FL 
 
 
 

Mary A.Y. Okada  
PO Box 3566 
Hagatna, Guam 96932 
(671) 735-5700 Work 
(671) 777-3216 Cell  
mary.okada@guamcc.edu 
1/3 
Pres. Guam Community College 
Education/Business 
Islander 
Female 
Hagatna, GU 
 

William (Bill) Ekstrom, Jr.   
1516 S. Paloma Blanca Pl.  
Kingman, AZ 86401 
(928) 753-5942 Home 
(928) 308-7434 Cell 
wjekstromjr@gmail.com 
2/3 
Retired-Attorney 
Government/Business Law 
White 
Male 
Kingman, AZ 
 

 
Executive Committee Directors 
 

Richard (Dick) E. Steinberg ~  
President  
PO Box 94738 
Las Vegas, NV 89193 
(702) 385-2090 Work  
rsteinberg@westcare.com 
3/3 
CEO-Health Services 
Non-Profit Business 
White 
Male 
Dandridge, TN 
  

 

 
Non-Director Ex-Officio Officers 
 

Ken Ortbals, Treasurer and Secretary 
of WestCare Florida, Inc. 
PO Box 94738 
Las Vegas, NV 89193 
(702) 385-2090 Work 
ken.ortbals@westcare.com  
3/3 
CFO 
Finance/Non-Profit Business 
White 
Male 
Henderson, NV 
  

 

 

mailto:rabadin@abadinlaw.com
mailto:mary.okada@guamcc.edu
mailto:wjekstromjr@gmail.com
mailto:rsteinberg@westcare.com
mailto:ken.ortbals@westcare.com


OMB No. 1545-0047
Form 990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2020
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Open to PublicG Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.Department of the Treasury InspectionInternal Revenue Service G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2020, and ending , 20

Employer identification numberC DCheck if applicable:B

Address change

Telephone numberEName change

Initial return

Final return/terminated

$Amended return Gross receiptsG
Is this a group return for subordinates?H(a)Name and address of principal officer:FApplication pending Yes No

H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No
If "No," attach a list. See instructions

H( )Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) 501(c) (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527I

Group exemption numberJ Website: G H(c) G
GForm of organization: Corporation Trust Association Other Year of formation: State of legal domicile:K L M

Part I Summary
Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:1

if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.Check this box G2
Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4
Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2020 (Part V, line 2a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5
Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6
Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a 7a
Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7b

Prior Year Current Year
Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
Total revenue ' add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . 12
Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10). . . . . . 15

Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16a

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) Gb

Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). . . . . . . . . . . . . 18
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

End of YearBeginning of Current Year
Total assets (Part X, line 16). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Part II Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

A Signature of officer DateSign
Here A

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date PTINCheck if

self-employedPaid
GFirm's namePreparer
GUse Only Firm's EIN GFirm's address

Phone no.

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

TEEA0101L  01/19/21BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2020)

7/01 6/30 2021

WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.
P.O. BOX 94738
LAS VEGAS, NV 89193-4738

59-3714627

(702) 385-2090

X

www.westcare.com

-2,298,432.-1,714,745.
5,276,325.3,434,663.
2,977,893.1,719,918.

-583,687.-147,208.
10,537,577.10,161,161.
5,131,970.5,254,119.

5,405,607.4,907,042.

9,953,890.10,013,953.
5,650.11,437.

854,256.976,285.
9,093,984.9,026,231.

0.
0.
25

158
7

10

FL2001X

9,953,890.

CFOKEN ORTBALS

X

X

TO PROVIDE TREATMENT & PREVENTION OF
SUBSTANCE ABUSE.

ROLAND M. ROOS
X

P00024256
ROOS AND MCNABB CPAS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

85-39027934384 E ASHLAN AVE, STE 107
(559) 226-2209FRESNO, CA 93726

Same As C Above
RICHARD STEINBERG

ROLAND M. ROOS



Form 990 (2020) Page 2

Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Briefly describe the organization's mission:1

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior2
Form 990 or 990-EZ?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. . . . 3 Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4 a

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4 b

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4 c

Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)4 d
$ $ $(Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )

4 e Total program service expenses G
Form 990 (2020)TEEA0102L   10/07/20BAA

8,614,447.

8,614,447. 9,086,880. 9,953,890.

X

X

59-3714627WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.

TO PROVIDE TREATMENT & PREVENTION OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE.

TO PROMOTE PUBLIC AWARENESS ABOUT CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY AND RELATED ISSUES AND
PROBLEMS; AND, TO PROMOTE RECOVERY FROM CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY AND OR RELATED ILLNESSES,
THROUGH DEVELOPING, ESTABLISHING AND/OR MAINTAINING OF CENTERS FOR THE REHABILITATION
OF INDIVIDUALS AND THEIR FAMILIES; AND TO PROMOTE THE HEALTH AND WELL-BEING OF ALL
CITIZENS. THE ORGANIZATION PROVIDES RESIDENTIAL AND OUT-PATIENT REHABILITATION
PROGRAMS, CRIMINAL JUSTICE PROGRAMS, HEALTH RELATED AND A VARIETY OF PREVENTION
PROGRAMS AND SERVICES ALL OF WHICH ARE RELATED TO THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT IS
ESTABLISHED.
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes No

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,' complete1
Schedule A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors See instructions?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates3
for public office? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election
in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,5
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part III. . . . . . . 5

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right6
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D,
Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the7
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes,'8
complete Schedule D, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian9
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation
services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments10
or in quasi endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part V. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX,11
or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If 'Yes,' complete Schedulea
D, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a
Did the organization report an amount for investments ' other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its totalb
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 b

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its totalc
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 c

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reportedd
in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IX. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 d

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X. . . . . . e 11 e

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addressesf
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X. . . . 11 f

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete12 a
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' andb
if the organization answered 'No' to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 b

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule E . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 a 14a

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,b
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14b

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any15
foreign organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to16
or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,17
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII,18
lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 'Yes,'19
complete Schedule G, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

20a20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule H . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 20b

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or21
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

TEEA0103L   10/07/20BAA Form 990 (2020)
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules  (continued)
Yes No

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX,22
column (A), line 2? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current23
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of24 a
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If 'Yes,' answer lines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If 'No, 'go to line 25a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24a
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 24b

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defeasec
any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24c
Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 24d

25 a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
25atransaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, andb
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule L, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current or26
former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% controlled entity
or family member of any of these persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key27
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

27persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV28
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? Ifa
28a'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 28b

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? Ifc
Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation30
contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part I. . . . . . . 31 31

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If 'Yes,' complete32
Schedule N, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections33
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,34
and Part V, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 a 35a

If 'Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlledb
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
36organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is37
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?38
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No
Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a 1 a
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . . . . . b 1 b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gamingc
(gambling) winnings to prize winners?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 c

TEEA0104L   10/07/20BAA Form 990 (2020)
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Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

Yes No

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-2 a
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . . . . 2 a
If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a 3 a

If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No' to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3 b

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a4 a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . . . . . . . . . 4 a
If 'Yes,' enter the name of the foreign countryGb
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 a 5 a
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?. . . . . . . . . . . . b 5 b
If 'Yes,' to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 5 c

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization6 a
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts wereb
not tax deductible?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods anda
services provided to the payor?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a
If 'Yes,' did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7 b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to filec
Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 c
If 'Yes,' indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 7 d
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . e 7 e
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 7 f

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899g
as required?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 g

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file ah
Form 1098-C? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.  Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 9 a
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 9 b

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 10 a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities. . . . . b 10 b

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 11 a

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sourcesb
against amounts due or received from them.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 b

12 a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 a
If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . . . . . . b 12 b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 13 a

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states inb
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 b
Enter the amount of reserves on hand. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 13 c
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 a 14 a

If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If 'No,' provide an explanation on Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 14 b

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
15excess parachute payment(s) during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes,' see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?. . . . . . . . . 16
If 'Yes,' complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
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Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for
a 'No' response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . . . . . 1 a 1 a
If there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent. . . . . b 1 b
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other2
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision3
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents4
since the prior Form 990 was filed? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55
Did the organization have members or stockholders?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more7 a
members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,b
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 b

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by8
the following:

The governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 8 a
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 8 b

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the9
organization's mailing address? If 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses on Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Section B. Policies  (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 a 10 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure theirb
operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a 11 a
Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.b
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,' go to line 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 a 12 a
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give riseb
to conflicts? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 b

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,' describe inc
Schedule O how this was done. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 c
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent15
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 15 a
Other officers or key employees of the organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 15 b
If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a16 a
taxable entity during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate itsb
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 b

Section C. Disclosure
List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed G17

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)18
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Other (explain on Schedule O)Own website Another's website Upon request

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to19
the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records G20
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Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1 a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

? List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

? List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.'
? List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(C)
Position (do not check more(A) (D) (E) (F)(B) than one box, unless person

Name and title Average Reportable Reportableis both an officer and a Estimated amounthours compensation from compensation fromdirector/trustee) of otherper the organization related organizations compensation fromweek (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) the organization(list any and relatedhours for organizationsrelated
organiza-

tions
below
dotted
line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)
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X

PATRICIA SALMERON 40
NURSE PRACTIONER 0 X 104,580. 0. 0.
JAMES WADHAMS 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
RICHARD STEINBERG 1
President & CEO 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
RICHARD RAMSAY 1
Chairman 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
MARKUS HUGHES 1
VICE CHAIR 0 X 0. 0. 0.
RAMON ABADIN 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
DERRICK BOAZMAN 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
MARY OKADA 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
TOM WALSH, II 1
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
WILLIAM EKSTROM JR. 0
Director 0 X 0. 0. 0.
KEN ORTBALS 1
Treasurer 0 X 0. 0. 0.
SCOTT BURNS 40
Psychiatrist 0 X 0. 0. 0.
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Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(B) (C)
Position (D) (E) (F)Average (do not check more than one(A)

hours box, unless person is both an Reportable ReportableName and title Estimated amountper officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from of otherweek the organization related organizations compensation from(list any (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) the organizationhours
and relatedfor

organizationsrelated
organiza
- tions
below
dotted
line)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

G1 b Subtotal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gc Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Gd Total (add lines 1b and 1c). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation2
from the organization G

Yes No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
3on line 1a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for

4such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
5for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such person. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A) (B) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than2
G$100,000 of compensation from the organization

TEEA0108L  10/07/20BAA Form 990 (2020)
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue

exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514

Federated campaigns. . . . . . . . . . 1 a 1 a
Membership dues. . . . . . . . . . . . . b 1 b
Fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c
Related organizations . . . . . . . . . d 1 d
Government grants (contributions). . . . . e 1 e
All other contributions, gifts, grants, andf
similar amounts not included above. . . . 1 f
Noncash contributions included ing

1 glines 1a-1f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gh Total. Add lines 1a-1f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Business Code

2 a

b

c

d

e
All other program service revenue. . . . f

Gg Total. Add lines 2a-2f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and3
Gother similar amounts). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

GIncome from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds4
GRoyalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

(i) Real (ii) Personal

Gross rents . . . . . . . . 6 a 6a

Less: rental expensesb 6b
Rental income or (loss)c 6c

GNet rental income or (loss). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
(i) Securities (ii) Other

Gross amount from7 a
sales of assets

7aother than inventory
Less: cost or other basisb

7band sales expenses

Gain or (loss). . . . . . . c 7c
Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Gd

Gross income from fundraising events8 a
(not including $
of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18. . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 a
Less: direct expenses . . . . . . b 8 b

GNet income or (loss) from fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . c

Gross income from gaming activities.9 a
See Part IV, line 19. . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 a
Less: direct expenses . . . . . . b 9 b

GNet income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . . . . . c

Gross sales of inventory, less . . . . . 10a
returns and allowances. . . . . . . . . . 10a
Less: cost of goods sold. . . . b 10b

GNet income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . . . . . . . . c
Business Code

11a

b

c
All other revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Ge Total. Add lines 11a-11d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

G12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(D)(A) (B) (C)Do not include amounts reported on lines Total expenses and FundraisingProgram service Management6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part  VIII. expenses general expenses expenses

Grants and other assistance to domestic1
organizations and domestic governments.
See Part IV, line 21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to domestic2
individuals. See Part IV, line 22. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to foreign3
organizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

Benefits paid to or for members. . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Compensation of current officers, directors,5
trustees, and key employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Compensation not included above to6
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other salaries and wages. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Pension plan accruals and contributions8
(include section 401(k) and 403(b)
employer contributions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Fees for services (nonemployees):11
Management . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a
Legal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b
Accounting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c
Lobbying. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17. . . e
Investment management fees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . 
Advertising and promotion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
Office expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Information technology. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
Travel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Payments of travel or entertainment18
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Conferences, conventions, and meetings. . . . 19
Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
Payments to affiliates. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . . . 22
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Other expenses. Itemize expenses not24
covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
on line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e
expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

a

b

c

d

All other expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. . . . 

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the organization reported in column (B)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

if followingCheck here G
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year

Cash ' non-interest-bearing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Savings and temporary cash investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2
Pledges and grants receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Accounts receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,5
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under6
6section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B). . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Notes and loans receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7
Inventories for sale or use. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis.10a
Complete Part VI of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10a
Less: accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 10b 10 c

11Investments ' publicly traded securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
12Investments ' other securities. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
13Investments ' program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
14Intangible assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
15Other assets. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
1616 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 17
Grants payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 18
Deferred revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 19
Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20
Escrow  or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . 21 21
Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, trustee,22
key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 23
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 24
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,25
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. 25

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here G
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
Net assets without donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 27
Net assets with donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 28

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here G
and complete lines 29 through 33.

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 30
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds. . . . . . . . . . . . 31 31
Total net assets or fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 32
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 33
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1,078,229. 1,950,940.
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74,589. 89,434.
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Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5
Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6
Investment expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7
Prior period adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,10
column (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No
Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other1

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' explain
in Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 a 2 a

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
on Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single3 a
Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a

If 'Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required auditb
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 b
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OMB No. 1545-0047Public Charity Status and Public Support
SCHEDULE A 2020Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
G Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Department of the Treasury InspectionG Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's

name, city, and state:

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described

in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college9
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after
June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported
organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must 
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III functionally
integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

Enter the number of supported organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f
Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).g

(v)  Amount of monetary(i) Name of supported organization (vi)  Amount of other(iii) Type of organization(ii) EIN (iv) Is the
(described on lines 1-10 organization listed support (see instructions) support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) in your governing

document?

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total

BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2016 (b) 2017 (c) 2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) Total
beginning in) G

Gifts, grants, contributions, and1
membership fees received. (Do not
include any 'unusual grants.'). . . . . . . . 

Tax revenues levied for the2
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended
on its behalf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

The value of services or3
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . . . 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 . . . 

The portion of total5
contributions by each person
(other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f). . . 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5
from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2016 (b) 2017 (c) 2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) Total
beginning in) G

Amounts from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . 7

Gross income from interest,8
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from
similar sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Net income from unrelated9
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carried on. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other income. Do not include10
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 Total support. Add lines 7
through 10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 12

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
Gorganization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
Public support percentage for 2020 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14 %

Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . %15 15

16a 33-1/3% support test'2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
Gand stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b 33-1/3% support test'2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
Gand stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test'2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how

Gthe organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . 

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test'2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

Gorganization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 GPrivate foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions . . . 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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0.
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See Part VI
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Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support
(c) 2018Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) G (a) 2016 (b) 2017 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions,1
and membership fees
received. (Do not include
any 'unusual grants.') . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts from admissions,2
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization's
tax-exempt purpose. . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts from activities3
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 . 

Tax revenues levied for the4
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended on
its behalf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
The value of services or5
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . . . 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 . . . 

Amounts included on lines 1,7a
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons. . . . . . . . . . . 

Amounts included on lines 2b
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
for the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Add lines 7a and 7b. . . . . . . . . . . c

8 Public support. (Subtract line
7c from line 6.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Total Support
(a) 2016 (b) 2017 (c) 2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) TotalCalendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) G

Amounts from line 6 . . . . . . . . . . 9
Gross income from interest, dividends,10a
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Unrelated business taxableb
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975. . . 

Add lines 10a and 10b. . . . . . . . . c
Net income from unrelated business11
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other income.  Do not include12
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 Total support. (Add Iines 9,
10c, 11, and 12.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
Gorganization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
%Public support percentage for 2020 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15
%Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part III, line 15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
%17 Investment income percentage for 2020 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
%18 Investment income percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part III, line 17 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

19a 33-1/3% support tests'2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
Gis not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . 

b 33-1/3% support tests'2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
Gline 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . 

20 GPrivate foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing documents?1
If 'No,' describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section2
509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If 'Yes,' answer lines 3b3a
and 3c below. 3a

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) andb
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI when and how the organization
made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ('foreign supported organization')? If 'Yes' anda4
if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supportedb
organization? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination underc
sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) purposes. 4c

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes,' answer lines5a
5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the
supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; (iii) the
authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action was

a5accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in theb
organization's organizing document? b5

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of

6the filing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor7
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? If 'Yes,'8
complete Part I of Schedule L  (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons,9a
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))?
If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9a

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which theb
supporting organization had an interest? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9b

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,c
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9c

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4943(f) (regarding10a
certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If 'Yes,'
answer line 10b below. 10a

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determineb
whether the organization had excess business holdings.). 10b

TEEA0404L   01/20/21BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Supporting Organizations (continued)Part IV
Yes No

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?11

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in lines 11b and 11c below,
the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

A family member of a person described in line 11a above?b 11b

c 11cA 35% controlled entity of a person described in line 11a or 11b above? If 'Yes' to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide detail in Part VI.

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one1
or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's
officers, directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If 'No,' describe in Part VI how the supported
organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more
than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees
were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers

1during the tax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s)
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how providing such
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the

2supporting organization.

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If 'No,' describe in Part VI how control or management of the

1supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the

1organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported2
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If 'No,' explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have a significant
voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role the organization's supported organizations played

3in this regard.

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.a

The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.b

The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).c

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If 'Yes,' then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted

2asubstantially all of its activities.

b Did the activities described in line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or
more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities

2bbut for the organization's involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.3

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees ofa
each of the supported organizations? If 'Yes' or 'No,' provide details in Part VI. 3a

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of itsb
supported organizations? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

TEEA0405L   09/14/20BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting OrganizationsPart V
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 

instructions. All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection A ' Adjusted Net Income (optional)

1 1Net short-term capital gain

2 2Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 3Other gross income (see instructions)

4 4Add lines 1 through 3.

5 5Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for

6production of income (see instructions)

7 7Other expenses (see instructions)

8 8Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection B ' Minimum Asset Amount (optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short
tax year or assets held for part of year):

a 1aAverage monthly value of securities

b 1bAverage monthly cash balances

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c

d 1dTotal (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

2 2Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 3Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
4see instructions).

5 5Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 6Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

7 7Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 8Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Current YearSection C ' Distributable Amount

1 1Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

2 2Enter 0.85 of line 1.

3 3Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

4 4Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

5 5Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency
6temporary reduction (see instructions).

7 Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization
(see instructions).

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)Part V
Current YearSection D ' Distributions

1 1Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations,
2in excess of income from activity

3 3Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

4 4Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

5 5Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required ' provide details in Part VI)
6 6Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 7Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details

8in Part VI). See instructions.
9 9Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6

10 10Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

(i) (ii) (iii)
Excess Underdistributions DistributableSection E ' Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

Distributions Pre-2020 Amount for 2020

1 Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2020 (reasonable
cause required ' explain in Part VI). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2020

a From 2015. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b From 2016. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

c From 2017. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

d From 2018. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

e From 2019. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

f Total of lines 3a through 3e

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h Applied to 2020 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2015 not applied (see instructions)

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2020 from Section D,
line 7: $

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b Applied to 2020 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.c

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2020, if any.
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than
zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2020. Subtract lines 3h and 4b
from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See
instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2021. Add lines 3j and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2016. . . . . . . 

b Excess from 2017. . . . . . . 

c Excess from 2018. . . . . . . 

d Excess from 2019. . . . . . . 

e Excess from 2020. . . . . . . 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Part VI Supplemental Information.  Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part
III, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020TEEA0408L   09/14/20
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Part II, Line 10 - Other Income

Nature and Source 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

OTHER REVENUE $ 5,650. $ 11,437. $ 15,406. $ 80,393. $ 25,656.
Total $ 5,650. $ 11,437. $ 15,406. $ 80,393. $ 25,656.



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D
(Form 990) G Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, 2020

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
G Attach to Form 990. Open to PublicDepartment of the Treasury G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Part I
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year). . . . . . . 2
Aggregate value of grants from (during year). . . . . . . . . . 3
Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
Yes Noare the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

Yes Noimpermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Part II Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).1
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic
2 dstructure listed in the National Register. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the3
tax year G

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located G

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,5
Yes Noand enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year6
G

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year7
G$

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
Yes Noand section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.Part III
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide in
Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

$GRevenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i)
$GAssets included in Form 990, Part X. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii)

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

$GRevenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a
$GAssets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

TEEA3301L   08/18/20BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
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Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its collection

items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition Loan or exchange programa d
Scholarly research Otherb e
Preservation for future generationsc

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
Yes Noto be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV,Part IV
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
Yes Noon Form 990, Part X?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:b
Amount

Beginning balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c
Additions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 1 d
Distributions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 1 e
Ending balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 1 f
Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?. . . . . 2 a Yes No
If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

Beginning of year balance. . . . . . 1 a
Contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

c Net investment earnings, gains,
and losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants or scholarships . . . . . . . . . d

e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Administrative expenses. . . . . . . . f
End of year balance. . . . . . . . . . . . g
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:2

%Board designated or quasi-endowment  Ga
%Permanent endowment  Gb

%Term endowment Gc
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
Yes Noorganization by:

Unrelated organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i) 3a(i)
Related organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii) 3a(ii)

If 'Yes' on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3b
Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.4

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (d) Book value(a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

Land. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a
Buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b
Leasehold improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c
Equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e

GTotal. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2020BAA
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1,641,156. 1,641,156.
531,363. 531,363.
38,257. 1,509,768. -1,471,511.

701,008.
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Part VII Investments ' Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(b) Book value(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(2) Closely held equity interests. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(3) Other

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12.) . . . 

Investments ' Program Related.Part VIII
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X,  column (B) line 13.). . . 
Other Assets.Part IX
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)

GTotal.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 15.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other Liabilities.Part X
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value1.
(1) Federal income taxes
(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

GTotal. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 25.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liability for uncertain
tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TEEA3303L  08/18/20BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2020

3,683,022.
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N/A

N/A

INTER COMPANY TRANSFERS 3,612,662.
RESTICTED CLINET FUNDS 70,358.
Rounding 2.
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Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:2
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a

b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 b
Recoveries of prior year grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e
Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:4
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 4 a
Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 4 b

c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:2
Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a
Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

c Other losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c
Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 b
c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Supplemental Information.Part XIII
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
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9,953,890.

9,953,890.
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OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZSCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2020Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

G Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.
Open to Public

Department of the Treasury G Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

TEEA4901L   07/28/20 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2020)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

59-3714627WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11b - Form 990 Review Process

Form 990 is reviewed by the CFO.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Explanation of Monitoring and Enforcement of Conflicts

The Board reviews any potential conflict at their Annual Board meeting.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15a - Compensation Review & Approval Process - CEO & Top Management

The Executive Committee reviews comparative data annually to determine compensation

for all Executives.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Other Organization Documents Publicly Available

Form 990 and the Annual Audited Financial Statements are available upon request at

the corporate office.



OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships
(Form 990) 2020G Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.

G Attach to Form 990.
Open to PublicG  Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Department of the Treasury InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Primary activity Legal domicile (state Total income End-of-year assets Direct controlling

or foreign country) entity

(1)

(2)

(3)

Part II Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it
had one or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(g)(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code Public charity status Direct controlling Sec 512(b)(13)

or foreign country) section (if section 501(c)(3)) entity controlled entity?

Yes No
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

TEEA5001L   07/15/20BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule R (Form 990) 2020

59-3714627
WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.

WESTCARE FOUNDATION, INC.
1711 WHITNEY MESA DR.
HENDERSON, NV 89014
86-0852629

SUPPORTING
ORGANIZATION NV 501(c)3 9 N/A X

FITZHOUSE ENTERPRISES
1711 WHITNEY MESA DR.
HENDERSON, NV 89014
37-1440598

REAL ESTATE
HOLDING COMPANY NV 501(c)2 N/A X
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Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership.  Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 34,Part III
because it had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity Legal Direct Share of total Share of Dispropor- Code V-UBI General orPredominant income Percentage

related organization domicile controlling income end-of-year tionate amount in box managing(related, unrelated, ownership
(state or entity assets allocations? 20 of Schedule partner?excluded from tax
foreign K-1 (Formunder sections
country) 1065)512-514) Yes No Yes No

(1)

(2)

(3)

Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV,Part IV
line 34, because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile Direct Type of entity Share of Share of end-of- Percentage Sec 512(b)(13)

(state or foreign controlling (C corp, S corp, total income year assets ownership controlled entity?
country) entity or trust)

Yes No
(1)

(2)

(3)

TEEA5002L   07/15/20BAA Schedule R (Form 990) 2020

59-3714627WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.
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Part V Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note: Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule. Yes No
During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?1

a Receipt of (i) interest, (ii) annuities, (iii) royalties, or (iv) rent from a controlled entity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a
Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 1 b
Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c
Loans or loan guarantees to or for related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 1 d
Loans or loan guarantees by related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 1 e

Dividends from related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 1 f
Sale of assets to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . g 1 g
Purchase of assets from related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . h 1 h
Exchange of assets with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . i 1 i
Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . j 1 j

Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . k 1 k
Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . l 1 l
Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . m 1 m
Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . n 1 n
Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o 1 o

Reimbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . p 1 p
Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . q 1 q

Other transfer of cash or property to related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . r 1 r
Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . s 1 s
If the answer to any of the above is 'Yes,' see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.2

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining

type (a-s) amount involved

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

TEEA5003L   07/15/20BAA Schedule R (Form 990) 2020
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X

WESTCARE FOUNDATION, INC. p 1,098,774.MANAGEMENT FEE

WESTCARE FOUNDATION, INC. s 1,745,306.OPERATING FUND
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Part VI Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross
revenue) that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of entity Primary activity Legal domicile Share of Share of Dispropor- Code V-UBI General orAre all partners PercentagePredominant

(state or foreign total income end-of-year tionate amount in box managingsection ownershipincome
country) assets allocations? 20 of Schedule partner?501(c)(3)(related, unre-

K-1organizations?lated, excluded
(Form 1065)from tax under

sections 512-514) Yes No Yes No Yes No

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2020TEEA5004L   07/15/20BAA

59-3714627WESTCARE GULFCOAST FLORIDA INC.
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Part VII Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

TEEA5005L   07/15/20BAA Schedule R (Form 990) 2020
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OMB No. 1545-0172
Depreciation and Amortization

Form 4562 (Including Information on Listed Property) 2020G Attach to your tax return.
Department of the Treasury AttachmentG Go to www.irs.gov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service (99) 179Sequence No.

Name(s) shown on return Identifying number

Business or activity to which this form relates

Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179Part I
Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I.

1 1Maximum amount (see instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 2Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 3Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 4Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If married filing5

5separately, see instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Description of property Cost (business use only) Elected cost6 (a) (b) (c)

7 7Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 8Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
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ROOS & MCNABB CPA'S 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Board of Directors 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WestCare GulfCoast­
Florida, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and 
functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 
and the change in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matters 
Supplemental and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards 
and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards; and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. The schedule of state earnings, schedule of bed-day availability payments, 
schedule of related party transaction adjustments, and program/cost center actual 
expenses and revenues schedule, are also presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated November 29, 2021, on our consideration of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.’s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance.  

Fresno, California 
November 29, 2021 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $   900 
Grant Contracts Receivable  1,950,940 
Prepaid Expenses       43,969 
Cash Restricted for Client Funds  192,542 
Property and Equipment, Net   790,443 

Total Assets $2,978,794 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $  280,254 
Accrued Salaries and Related Expenses   424,574 
Due to Clients (Contra)      70,358 
Due to Related Organization   3,612,662 
Deferred Revenue – SBA Loan/Grant   491,034 
Deferred Revenue   398,342 

Total Liabilities $5,277,224 

NET ASSETS 

Without Donor Restrictions  (2,298,430) 

Total Net Assets (2,298,430) 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $2,978,794 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Revenues and Other Support 
Federal Contract Revenue $ 2,003,103 
State Contract Revenue    3,725,810 
County Contract Revenue    1,443,470 
City Contract Revenue       486,240 
Other Contract Revenue       475,360 
Client Fees        854,255 
Donations and Gifts      7,104 
PPP Funds        952,897 
Other Revenue       5,653 

Total Revenues and Other Support 
Without Donor Restrictions  $ 9,953,892 

Expenses 
Program Services 

Grants and Program Support    8,614,448 
Total Program Services     8,614,448 

Supporting Services 
General and Administrative    1,923,130 

Total Supporting Services     1,923,130 

Total Expenses  10,537,578 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions      (583,686) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year    (1,714,744) 

Net Assets, End of Year  $(2,298,430) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions   $(583,686) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets 
To Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation       104,354 

(Increase) or Decrease in: 
Grants Receivable  (872,711) 
Prepaid Expenses  (1,076) 

Increase or (Decrease) in: 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses  59,043 
Accrued Salaries and Related Expenses    30,978 
Clients Funds (Contra)    52,575 
Deferred Revenue – SBA Loan/Grant        (134,507) 
Deferred Revenue     89,168 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) in Operating Activities    $(1,255,862) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of Property and Equipment   (326,095) 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) in Investing Activities  (326,095) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Advances from Related Organization    1,745,306 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) in Financing Activities   1,745,306 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and 
Restricted Cash  163,349 

Beginning Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash   30,093 

Ending Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash   $   193,442 

Supplemental Disclosure: 
Interest Paid           $    - 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Federal 
Grants State Grants Local Grants Other 

Grants
Program 
Support

Toal 
Program

General and 
Adminstrative Total

898,343$   1,861,660$   1,063,659$   1,250$   215,215$   4,040,127$    243,219$   4,283,346$    
235,371  487,765  278,685  328  56,388  1,058,536  63,725  1,122,261  

1,133,714  2,349,425  1,342,344  1,578  271,603  5,098,663  306,944  5,405,607  

84,551  413,714  205,918  - 95,907 800,090  26,463  826,553  
7,690  17,218  4,819  - 481 30,208  5,356  35,564  

42,512  36,981  37,820  9,380  4,279 130,972  22,562  153,534  
19,374  360,885  31,045  20  71,966 483,290  - 483,290 
38,617  962,254  16,018  184,191 131  1,201,211  150  1,201,361 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
12,000  12,000  6,000  3,000  3,000  36,000  238,983  274,983  

135,440  229,108  106,391  9,213  37,891  518,043  104,922  622,965  
39,543  233,910  800  32,908  - 307,161 23,432  330,593  

-  -  -  -  - - -  -  
-  -  -  -  - - 1,098,774  1,098,774  

379,727  2,266,070  408,811  238,712  213,655  3,506,975  1,520,642  5,027,617  

1,513,441  4,615,495  1,751,154  240,290  485,258  8,605,638  1,827,586  10,433,224  

- 4,710 2,261  - 1,839 8,810  95,544  104,354  

Salaries and Related Expenses 
Salaries & Wages
Payroll taxes and employee benefits

Total Salaries and Related Expenses

Other Expenses
Building Occupancy
Travel
Equipment Costs
Food Costs
Medical & Pharmacy
Subcontracted Services
Insurance
Operating Supplies and Expenses 
Professional Services
Donated Goods and Services 
Management Fees

Total Other Expenses 

Total Expenses Before Depreciation 

Depreciation

Total Expense
1,513,441  4,620,206  1,753,416  240,290  487,097  8,614,448  1,923,130  10,537,578  

WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Services

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES: 

WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. is a tax exempt, non-profit corporation governed by a 
volunteer board of directors incorporated in 2001 whose purposes include, but are not 
limited to the following: 

A. To promote public awareness about chemical dependency and related issues
and problems; and,

B. To promote recovery from chemical dependency and or related illnesses, through
developing, establishing and/or maintaining of centers for the rehabilitation of
individuals and their families.

C. To promote the health and well being of all citizens.

The Organization provides residential and out-patient rehabilitation programs, criminal 
justice programs, health related and a variety of prevention programs and services all of 
which are related to the purposes for which it is established. 

WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. applied for re-accreditation under CARF (Commission 
on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities). The process involved completion of an 
Intent/Application document and a three-day site visit by a team of four CARF 
surveyors. WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. was awarded the highest recommendation, 
a three-year accreditation from January 2021 through January 2024. 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying financial statements of the Organization have 
been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  

Basis of Presentation: Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified as 
follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the 
primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used at the 
discretion of Management and the Board of Directors.  

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by 
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those 
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. 
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has 
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 

Measure of Operations: The statement of activities reports all changes in net assets, 
including changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating 
activities consist of those items attributable to the Organization’s ongoing activities. 
Non-operating activities are limited to resources that generate return from investments 
and other activities considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring nature. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures 
contained in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the 
Organization considers investments available for current use with an initial maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

Concentrations of Credit Risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the 
Organization to concentration of credit risk are cash and receivables. Concentration of 
credit risk with respect to receivables is limited because a substantial portion of these 
balances are due from federal and state governmental agencies. Management believes 
the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash. The Organization 
maintains its cash in various bank accounts that, at times, may exceed federally insured 
limits. These accounts have been placed with high credit quality financial institutions. 
On June 30, 2021, the Organization did not have cash in excess of the FDIC insured 
limit. 

Receivables: Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
balances outstanding at year end. The receivables are primarily contracts and/or grants 
from funding sources for services performed under cost reimbursement contracts. It is 
the practice of the Organization to record an allowance for doubtful accounts. Bad debts 
are charged to the allowance account as incurred. Based on management’s 
assessment of receivables it has concluded that an allowance is not necessary on June 
30, 2021. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off to bad debt expense.  

Revenue and Revenue Recognition: Revenue is recognized when earned. Program 
service fees and payments received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in 
which the related services are performed, or expenditures are incurred, respectively.  

Contract Revenue: Revenue under some third-party payor agreements is subject to 
audit and retroactive adjustments. Provisions for estimated third-party payor settlements 
are provided in the period the related services are rendered, if determinable. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 

Contributions: Contributions are recognized as income at the estimated value at date of 
receipt as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, 
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. No 
donations with donor-imposed restrictions have been received.  

Conditional Promises to Give: Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until 
the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. Conditional gifts 
received prior to the satisfaction of conditions are recorded as refundable advances. 

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions:  Volunteers contribute significant amounts 
of time to our program services, administration, and fundraising and development 
activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed 
services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted 
accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of 
donation. Donated services are recorded at the respective fair values of the services 
received. No significant contributions of such goods or services were received during 
the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Due to/from related parties: Amounts as due to/from related parties, included in the 
accompanying statements of financial position, arise principally from the collaborative 
activities between the affiliates to further the mission of the Organization.  

Property and Equipment: The Organization capitalizes property and equipment over 
$5,000. Lesser amounts are expensed. Purchased property and equipment is 
capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions 
at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions 
unless the donor has restricted the donated assets to a specific purpose. The cost of 
maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred, significant renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

Compensated Absences: The Organization’s policy allows employees to accumulate 
vacation and sick leave based on the length of service, position, and other factors. 
Accrual of vacation time is included in the accompanying financial statements. The total 
amount accrued for vacation on June 30, 2021 was $240,834. 

Income Taxes: The Organization qualifies as a not-for-profit organization as described 
in Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is tax exempt from federal and 
state income taxes, therefore no provisions for income taxes have been made. 
Management is of the opinion that there is no unrelated business income subject to 
taxation. Management is also of the opinion that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions. All tax returns have been appropriately filed by the Organization. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued): 

Functional Expenses: The financial statements report certain categories of expenses 
that are attributable to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these 
expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The 
costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized 
on a functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses 
presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Such expenses are 
charged to grant programs and supporting services on the basis of program costs. 
General and administrative costs include those expenses that are not directly 
identifiable with any specific program but provide for the overall support of the 
Organization. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program services 
and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management on 
an equitable basis.  

Salaries and benefits are charged directly to the program for which work has been done 
based on time and effort. Other expenses and overhead costs are based on staff 
allocation to functional areas. 

NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted 
cash reported within the statement of financial position that sum to the amounts shown 
in the statement of cash flows: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  $      900 

Cash Restricted for Client Funds   192,542 

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows $193,442 

NOTE 4 – RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS: 

Restrictions, if any, on assets as of June 30, 2021, are related to grant awards and/or 
lending agreements. Such assets must be used in accordance with the purposes 
established by laws and regulations of the grants or agreements in contrast with 
unrestricted funds over which the governing board remained full control to use in 
achieving any of its organizational purposes. 

Separate cash accounts are maintained as required by grant and/or lending 
agreements. The Organization also holds cash in trust for participants in various 
programs. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 5 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS: 

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets available within one year of the 
statement of financial position date. There are no amounts reduced and not available for 
general use because of donor-imposed restrictions or long-term investments. 

Cash and cash equivalents $          900 
Grant contracts receivable    1,950,940 

Total available for general expenditures $1,951,840 

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it utilizes a zero-balance account 
(zba) with WestCare Foundation, Inc., a checking account in which a balance of zero is 
maintained by automatically transferring funds from a master account in an amount only 
large enough to cover checks presented. This cash pooling system is designed to leave 
in the current accounts of the subsidiaries the minimum amounts to be able to deal with 
their debts contracted. The advantage of this system is to centralize the cash to be able 
to obtain better rates. In addition, the Organization transfers amounts as needed to 
meet cash flow needs through a related affiliate, WestCare Foundation, Inc. 

NOTE 6 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET: 

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following on June 30, 2021: 

Leasehold Improvements $1,641,156 
Furniture and Fixtures        38,257 
Computer Equipment          9,975 
Vehicles       521,388 
Construction in Progress        89,435 

  2,300,211 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation   (1,509,768) 

Total Property and Equipment, Net $   790,443 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, depreciation expense totaled $104,354. 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN: 

The Organization has a 401(k)-retirement plan covering eligible employees held with 
Voya Financial with a Safe Harbor Match. The Organization’s match is 3% of each 
qualified employee’s basic contribution plus an additional $.50 for each $1 contributed 
for the next 2% earnings. Plan contribution by the Organization for the year ended June 
30, 2021 was $63,130. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: 

Operating Leases: 
As of June 30, 2021, the Organization had entered into various non-cancellable 
operating lease agreements for real property. The approximate minimum future 
commitments on an annual basis are as follows: 2021 $153,925, 2022 $158,137, 2023 
$82,807, 2024 $21,400, 2025 $21,600 and thereafter $25,200. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which 
requires lessees to recognize leases on the statement of financial position for most 
leases with a term longer than 12 months. The effective date for this standard has been 
delayed to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. 

Contingencies: 
Federal Grants – The Organization receives financial assistance from the federal 
government in the form of grants and entitlements. Receipt of grants is generally 
conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and 
applicable federal laws and regulations, including the expenditure of resources for 
eligible purposes. Accordingly, expenditures financed by these programs are subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies, which could result in request 
for reimbursement by the grantor agencies for expenditures, if disallowed by the 
granting agencies, cannot be determined at this time. Management believes that such 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of 
the Organization. 

NOTE  9 – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY: 

The Organization receives a significant portion of its support and revenues from 
contracts and/or agreements with agencies of the Government of the United States. The 
Organization’s ability to continue operating is predicated on the government’s continued 
support and funding of its programs. The continuation of program services in the 
subsequent year is expected based on contract renewals and continuations received to 
date. A significant reduction in the level of this funding, if this were to occur, could have 
an adverse effect on the programs and activities. 

NOTE 10 - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS: 

The Organization receives a substantial portion of its support from various funding 
sources which required a local match. These funding sources include: The State of 
Florida Department of Children and Families, Central Florida Behavioral Health 
Network, Inc., U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under the 
Supportive Housing Program, and the U.S. Department of Justice. The Organization 
has satisfied all matching requirements through local grants and by incurring sufficient 
eligible expenses. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 11 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

WestCare Foundation, Inc. is a managing and governing oversight organization for 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. During the year ending June 30, 2021, WestCare 
Foundation, Inc. received management fees for general and administrative expenses of 
$1,098,774 from WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. 

In addition, WestCare Foundation, Inc. has advanced funds as of June 30, 2021 to 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. for $3,612,662. 

FitzHouse Enterprises, Inc. owns property that is leased to WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, 
Inc. During the year ended June 30, 2021, FitzHouse Enterprises, Inc. received rental 
income for the purpose of providing funds for facility maintenance expenses of 
$224,244. 

NOTE 12 – COVID-19 PANDEMIC: 

The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first became known in January 2020, is having 
a broad and negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world. The 
United States and global markets experienced significant declines in value resulting 
from uncertainty caused by the pandemic. The Organization is closely monitoring its 
liquidity and is actively working to minimize the impact of these declines. The extent of 
the impact of COVID-19 on the Organization’s operational and financial performance 
will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak 
and its impacts on the Organization’s customers, employees, and vendors, all of which 
at present, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 may 
impact the Organization’s financial position and changes in net assets and cash flows is 
uncertain and the accompanying financial statements include no adjustments relating to 
the effects of this pandemic. 

NOTE 13 – PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOANS: 

The Organization was granted $1,658,472 in loans under the Paycheck Protection 
Program “PPP” administered by a Small Business Administration (SBA) approved 
partner. The loans are uncollateralized and are fully guaranteed by the Federal 
government. The Organization is eligible for loan forgiveness of up to 100% of the 
loans, upon meeting certain requirements. The Organization initially recorded the loans 
as refundable advances and subsequently recognized grant revenue in accordance with 
guidance for conditional contributions; that is, once the measurable performance or 
other barrier and a right to return of the PPP loans no longer existed or when such 
conditions are explicitly waived. The Organization has recognized $952,897 as grant 
revenue for the year ended June 30, 2021 and $214,541 in the prior year. The 
remaining proceeds from the loan are eligible for forgiveness if the Organization 
maintains employment levels during its 24 weeks covered period and uses the funds for 
certain payroll, rent, and utility expenses.  
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through November 29, 2021, the 
date which the financial statements were available to be issued and has determined that 
there were no events occurring during that period that required disclosure to the 
accompanying financial statements. 

END OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION 



Pass through Federal Federal 
Identifying # CFDA# Expenditures

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

US Department of Housing & Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Pass Through Award(s):
City of Clearwater - CDBG N/A 14.218 10,990 
City of Largo - CDBG B17MC120028 & B20MC120028 14.218 22,847 
City of St. Petersburg - ESG / CDBG E-19-MC-12-0017 & B-20-MC-12-0017 14.218 53,297 
City of St. Petersburg - ESG / CDBG - CARES CARES 14.218 43,346 
Pinellas County - CDBG CD20WCOPS 14.218 28,368 
Pasco County - CDBG B-20-UC-12-0009 14.218 22,428 
Pasco County - CDBG - CARES CD20-0165 14.218 2,450 

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 183,726 

US Department of Housing & Urban Development

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Pass Through Award(s):

City of St. Petersburg - ESG / CDBG E-19-MC-12-0017 & B-20-MC-12-0017 14.231 72,376 
Total Emergency Solutions Grant Program 72,376 

Supportive Housing Program
Direct Award(s):

Supportive Housing Program Rapid Rehousing 14.235 50,150 
Total Supportive Housing Program 50,150 

US Department of Justice

Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program
Pass Through Award(s):

Pinellas County - OJDDP Family Dependency Drug Court - Enhancement 2018-DC-BX-0023 16.585 236,578 
Pinellas County - BJA Veterans Drug Court - VALOR 2019-VC-BX-0067 16.585 130,914 
Pasco County - BJA Neuro Trauma 2020-DC-BX-0142 16.585 48,723 

Total Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 416,215 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Pass Through Award(s):

  Florida Department of Law Enforcement
through Pinellas County Health and Community Services 2019-MU-BX-0036/2020-JAGC-3610 16.738 30,000 

Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 30,000 

Office of Justice Programs, Juvenile Justice & Delinquency Prevention
Pass Through Award(s):

Pinellas County - Opioid Affected Youth Initiative 2019-YB-FX-K002 16.842 41,136 
Total Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 41,136 

US Department of Veterans Affairs

VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem Program
Direct Award(s):

VA Per Diem WGCF627-0694-516-LD-18-0 64.024 12,882 
Total VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem Program 12,882 

US Department of Health & Human Services

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Projects of Regional and National Significance

Direct Award(s):
SAMHSA Workforce 1H79TI083388 93.243 365,606 

Pass Through Award(s):
Pinellas County SAMHSA - Cooperative Agreement to Benefit Homeless Individuals (CABHI)SM063331 93.243 12,989 
Pasco County CSAT Drug Court - Dependency 1H79TI080841 93.243 347,681 
Pinellas County Adult Drug Court - Thrive 1H79TI81905 93.243 378,525 
Pasco County Adult Drug Court - Thrive 1H79TI082965 93.243 259,849 

Total Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 1,364,650 

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Pass Through Award(s):

DCF - CFBHN - HIV Testing QB055 93.959 47,842 
DCF - CFBHN - Recovery Support & Supplemental SA QB055 93.959 189,374 
DCF - CFBHN - Prevention QB055 93.959 27,878 

Total Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 265,094 

Opioid SOR
Pass Through Award(s):

DCF - CFBHN - State Opioid Response QB055 93.788 870,611 
Total Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 870,611 

Department of Homeland Security

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program
Pass Through Award(s):

United Way Phase 37 & 38 97.024 74,584 
United Way Phase CARES 97.024 43,487 

Total Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 118,071 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 3,424,911$    

WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC.
 SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FL0446L4H021806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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STATE OF FLORIDA AWARDS: Contract # CFSA # Expenditures

Florida Department of Transportation
Passed through from Federal Transit Administration FY2017/YR42 20.513 - 

Florida Department of Transportation FY2017/YR42 55.001 - 

State of Florida Courts System
Passed Through Florida Alcohol and Drug Abuse Association, Inc.

Opioid Treatment (MAT Services) N/A 22.022 292,179 

Department of Corrections - Focus C2654 70.016 2,170,393 
Department of Corrections - MH Overlay B56ADF 70.016 141,000 

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 2,603,572$    

 SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES  

OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial 
assistance include the federal and state award activity of WestCare Gulfcoast-Florida, 
Inc. under programs of the federal and state government for the year ended June 30, 
2021. The information in the schedules is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and Florida Single Audit Act, Auditor General Rule 10.650. 
Because the Schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of WestCare 
Gulfcoast-Florida, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of WestCare Gulfcoast-Florida, Inc. 

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Expenditures reported on the Schedules are reported on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in 
the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650 Rules of the Auditor General, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

NOTE C – INDIRECT COST RATE: 

WestCare Gulfcoast-Florida, Inc. has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis 
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. WestCare Gulfcoast-Florida, Inc. 
has a provisional indirect rate agreement for 26% for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements 
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) idenitifed? No 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards and State Projects 
Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? No 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 

Types of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
 in accordance with CFR 200.516(a) or Chapter 10.656? No 

Identification of major programs: 
Federal Program or Cluster Federal CFDA No. 
Block Grants for Prevention & Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 
Opioid SOR 93.788 

State Project State CFDA/CFSA No. 
Department of Corrections – Focus 70.016 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A & type B Programs: 
Federal Programs: $750,000 
State Programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee pursuant to Uniform Guidance: Yes 
(Not applicable for State Projects) 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

None reported 

Section III – Federal/State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported 

Section IV – Other Issues/Prior Year Audit Findings 

No management letter is required because there were no findings required to be reported in the 
management letter. 
No Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings is required because there were no prior audit findings. 
No Corrective Action Plan is required because there were no findings required to be reported. 

18 



Schedule of State Earnings for 
Fiscal Year   7/1/20 - 6/30/21

1 Total Expenditures 10,537,578.00

2  Less Other State and Federal Funds (5,728,913.00)

3  Less Non-Match SAMH Funds (1,929,710.00)

4  Less Unallowable Costs per 65E-14, F.A.C. 0.00

5 Total Allowable Expenditures 2,878,955.00
(Sum of lines 1, 2, 3, and 4)

6 Maximum Available Earnings 2,159,216.25
(Line 5 times 75%)

7 Amount of State Funds Requiring Match 122,530.00

8 Amount Due to Department 2,036,686.25
(Subtract line 7 from line 6)

WESTCARE GULFCOAST-FLORIDA, INC.

CF-MH 1034, Jul 2003 
(6/17/02)       �� Substance Abuse and Mental Health Program



AUDIT SCHEDULE
WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc.

Schedule of Bed-Day Availability Payments
For Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/21

State 
Contracted 

Rate

Total Units of 
Service 

Provided

Total Units of 
Service Paid 

for by 3rd 
Party 

Contracts, 
Local Govt. or 

Other State  
Agencies

Maximum # 
of Units 

Eligible for 
Payment by 
Department

Amount Paid 
for Services 

by the 
Department

Maximum $ 
Value of 
Units in 

Column F

Amount 
Owed to 

Department

Program Cost Center
(D-E) (F x C)

(G-H or $0, 
whichever is 

greater)
A B C D E F G H I

Children's MH Crisis Stabilization Unit 0 $0.00 $0.00
Adult MH Crisis Stabilization Unit 0 $0.00 $0.00
Children's SA Substance Abuse Detox 0 $0.00 $0.00
Adult SA Substance Abuse Detox 0 $0.00 $0.00
Adult MH Short-term Residential Treatment 0 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00
This Schedule N/A 0 $0.00 $0.00

0 $0.00 $0.00
0 $0.00 $0.00

Total Amount Owed to Department = $0.00

CF-MH 1036, Jul 2003
(12/17/02)       �� Substance Abuse and Mental Health Programs



AUDIT SCHEDULE
WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc.

Schedule of Related Party Transaction Adjustments
for the Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2021

Related Allocation of Related Party Transactions Adjustment
Revenues From Grantee Party State-Designated Cost Centers

1 2 3 ...... Total
  Rent XXX
  Services XXX
  Interest XXX
  Other XXX

Total Revenue From Grantee XXX This Schedule N/A

Expenses Associated with Grantee Transactions
  Personnel Services YYY
  Depreciation YYY
  Interest YYY
  Other YYY

Total Associated Expenses YYY

Related Party Transaction Adjustment ZZZ ZZZ ZZZ ZZZ ZZZ ZZZ

CF-MH 1035, Jul 2003
(10/21/01)       �� Substance Abuse and Mental Health Program



AUDIT SCHEDULE
SUBSTANCE ABUSE & MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

PROGRAM / COST CENTER ACTUAL EXPENSES AND REVENUES SCHEDULE

AGENCY: WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc. DATE PREPARED: 10/12/2021

CONTRACT #: QG055 BUDGET PERIOD: FROM 7/1/2020 TO 6/30/2021

PART I:  ACTUAL FUNDING SOURCES & REVENUES

STATE-DESIGNATED SAMH COST CENTERS

STATE SAMH-FUNDED COST CENTERS
Program 1 - Adult Program 2 - Children

FUNDING SOURCES & REVENUES
Treatment & 

Aftercare MAT
Total for Program 

1 Prevention (CC name)
Total for Program 

2

Total for State 
SAMH-Funded 
Cost Centers

Total for Non-
State-Funded 
SAMH Cost 

Centers

Tot. for All State-
Designated SAMH 

Cost Centers
Non-SAMH Cost 

Center Total Funding
(B1-a+…+B1-x) (B2-a+…+B2-x) (C1+…+Cx) (D+E) (F+G)

A B1-a B1-b C1 B2-a B2-b C2 D E F G H
IA. STATE SAMH FUNDING

(1) CFBHN - HIV 47,842$     $ 47,842$     -$   $ -$   47,842$    xxxxxxxxx 47,842$    xxxxxxxxx 47,842$     

(2) CFBHN -  Recovery Support 189,374$     $ 189,374$     -$   $ -$   189,374$    xxxxxxxxx 189,374$    xxxxxxxxx 189,374$     

(3) CFBHN - Prevention $ $ -$   27,878$    $ 27,878$     27,878$     xxxxxxxxx 27,878$    xxxxxxxxx 27,878$     

(4) CFBHN - MAT (SOR) $ 870,611$     870,611$     $ $ -$   870,611$    xxxxxxxxx 870,611$    xxxxxxxxx 870,611$     

  (5) $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  xxxxxxxxx -$   xxxxxxxxx -$    

  (6) $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  xxxxxxxxx -$   xxxxxxxxx -$    

(7) From Other Districts $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ xxxxxxxxx $

TOTAL STATE SAMH FUNDING = 237,216$     870,611$     1,107,827$     27,878$     -$   27,878$    1,135,705$     $ 1,135,705$    xxxxxxxxx 1,135,705$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IB. OTHER GOVT. FUNDING

(1) Other State Agency Funding $ $ -$   $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,590,105$     2,590,105$     

(2) Medicaid $ $ -$   $ $ $ $ $ $ -$   -$   

(3) Local Government $ $ -$   $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,929,710$     1,929,710$     

(4) Federal Grants and Contracts $ $ -$   $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,003,103$     2,003,103$     

(5) In-kind from local govt. only $ $ -$   $ $ $ $ $ $ -$   $

TOT. OTHER GOVT. FUNDING = -$   -$  -$  $ $ $ $ $ $ 6,522,918$     6,522,918$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IC. ALL OTHER REVENUES

(1) 1st & 2nd Party Payments $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -$    

(2) 3rd Party Payments (except Medicare) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 854,256$     854,256$     

(3) Medicare $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -$    

(4) Contributions and Donations $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 7,104$     7,104$     

(5) Other $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,433,907$     1,433,907$     

(6) In-kind $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -$   $

TOT. ALL OTHER REVENUES = $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,295,267$     2,295,267$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

TOTAL FUNDING = $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 8,818,185$     9,953,890$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

CF-MH 1037, Aug 2003
(8/5/03)       �� Substance Abuse and Mental Health Programs



AUDIT SCHEDULE
SUBSTANCE ABUSE & MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

PROGRAM / COST CENTER ACTUAL EXPENSES AND REVENUES SCHEDULE

AGENCY: WestCare Gulfcoast Florida, Inc. DATE PREPARED: 10/12/2021

CONTRACT #: QG055 BUDGET PERIOD: FROM 7/1/2020 TO 6/30/2021

PART II:  ACTUAL EXPENSES

STATE-DESIGNATED SAMH COST CENTERS

STATE SAMH-FUNDED COST CENTERS
Program 1 Program 2 *except IIC & IID

EXPENSE CATEGORIES
Treatment & 

Aftercare MAT Program 1 Total Prevention (CC name) Program 2 Total

Total for State-
Funded AMH 
Cost Centers

Total for Non-
State-Funded 
SAMH Cost 

Centers

Tot. for All State-
Designated SAMH 

Cost Centers
Non-SAMH Cost 

Center
Other Support 
Costs (optional) Administration Total Expenses 

(B1-a+…+B1-x) (B2-a+…+B2-x) (C1+…+Cx) (D+E) (F+G+H*+I*)
A B1-a B1-b C1 B2-a B2-b C2 D E F G H I J

IIA. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

(1) Salaries 142,569$     93,160$     235,729$     13,004$     -$   13,004$    248,733$     -$   248,733$   4,034,613$     $ $ 4,283,346$     

(2) Fringe Benefits 37,354$     24,408$     61,762$     3,407$     -$   3,407$    65,169$     -$   65,169$   1,057,092$     $ $ 1,122,261$     

TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES = 179,923$     117,568$     297,491$     16,411$     -$   16,411$    313,902$     -$   313,902$   5,091,705$     -$   -$  5,405,607$    

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IIB. OTHER EXPENSES

(1) Building Occupancy 40,790$     13,346$     54,136$     3,000$     $ 3,000$     57,136$     -$   57,136$   759,642$     $ $ 816,778$    

(2) Professional Services -$   182,450$    182,450$     8,613$     $ 8,613$     191,063$     -$   191,063$   139,530$     $ $ 330,593$    

(3) Travel 94$    5,500$     5,594$     120$    $ 120$    5,714$     -$   5,714$   29,849$     $ $ 35,563$    

(4) Equipment $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  -$  -$  85,895$    $ $ 85,895$    

(5) Food Services 17,971$     $ 17,971$     -$   $ -$   17,971$    -$   17,971$   465,319$     $ $ 483,290$    

(6) Medical and Pharmacy 1,900$     524,469$     526,369$     -$   $ -$   526,369$    -$   526,369$   674,991$     $ $ 1,201,360$     

(7) Subcontracted Services $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  $ $ -$     

(8) Insurance 10,295$     10,000$     20,295$     1,500$     $ 1,500$     21,795$     -$   21,795$   253,188$     $ $ 274,983$    

(9) Interest Paid $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  $ $ -$     

(10) Operating Supplies & Expenses 8,959$     4,382$     13,341$     6,891$     $ 6,891$     20,232$     -$   20,232$   559,935$     $ $ 580,167$    

(11) Repair & Maintenance 17,334$     264$    17,598$     -$   $ -$   17,598$    -$   17,598$   206,970$     $ $ 224,568$    

(12) Donated Items $ $ -$   $ $ -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  $ $ -$     

(13) Behaviorial Health Fee -$   -$  -$  -$  $ -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  $ $ -$     

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES = 97,343$     740,411$     837,754$     20,124$     -$   20,124$    857,878$     -$   857,878$   3,175,319$     -$   -$  4,033,197$    

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

TOT. PERSONNEL & OTH. EXP. = 277,266$     857,979$     1,135,245$     36,535$     -$   36,535$    1,171,780$     -$   1,171,780$   8,267,024$     -$   -$  9,438,804$    

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IIC. DISTRIBUTED INDIRECT COSTS

(a) Other Support Costs (Optional) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ <          > $ -$     

(b) Administration 21,349$     78,355$     99,704$     2,509$     $ 2,509$     102,213$     $ 102,213$    996,561$     $    0.00 $ <          > 1,098,774$     

TOT. DISTR'D INDIRECT COSTS = 21,349$     78,355$     99,704$     2,509$     -$   2,509$    102,213$     -$   102,213$   996,561$     XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX 1,098,774$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

TOTAL ACTUAL OPER. EXPENSES = 298,615$     936,334$     1,234,950$     39,044$     -$   39,044$    1,273,994$     -$   1,273,994$   9,263,584$     $    0.00 $    0.00 10,537,578$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IID. UNALLOWABLE COSTS -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX -$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

TOT. ALLOWABLE OPER. EXP. = 298,615$     936,334$     1,234,950$     39,044$     -$   39,044$    1,273,994$     -$   1,273,994$   9,263,584$     XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX 10,537,578$     

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

IIE. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$    

 ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

CF-MH 1037, Aug 2003
(8/5/03)        �� Substance Abuse and Mental Health Programs



ROOS &MCNABB CPA'S 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, the financial statements of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, 
and the related statement of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 29, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of WestCare 
GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, 
Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fresno, California 
November 29, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BYTHE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND CHAPTER 10.650, 

RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

To the Board of Directors 
WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
We have audited WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement, and the requirements described 
in the Department of Financial Services' State Projects Compliance Supplement, that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s major federal 
programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2021. WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, 
lnc.'s major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of federal awards and state projects applicable to its federal programs and 
state projects. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of WestCare GulfCoast­
Florida, lnc.'s major federal programs and state projects based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the 
Auditor General. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the 
Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program and state project occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, lnc.'s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
In our opinion, WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of its major federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2021.  

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered WestCare 
GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program and state project to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and state project and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance 
and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of WestCare GulfCoast-Florida, Inc.’s internal control 
over compliance.  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program and state project on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program and state project will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with the type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state 
project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fresno, California 
November 29, 2021 
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